
 
 

 
 
 
DYDD MAWRTH, 27 CHWEFROR 2024 
 
 
AT: YR AELOD CABINET DROS GARTREFI A DIRPRWY 
ARWEINYDD 
 
 
YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
O’R YR AELOD CABINET DROS GARTREFI A DIRPRWY 
ARWEINYDD A GYNHELIR YN YSTAFELL AELOD Y CABINET - 
NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN. SA31 1JP. AC O BELL AM 2.00 
YP, AR DYDD MAWRTH, 5ED MAWRTH, 2024 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA 
ATODEDIG. 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 

 
Swyddog Democrataidd: Emma Bryer 
Ffôn (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224029 
E-bost: ebryer@sirgar.gov.uk 
 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 
 
 

 
 

Pecyn Dogfennau



 

 
 
 

 

A G E N D A   
  

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 
 

 

 
2. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 

GYNHALIWYD AR 6ED CHWEFROR, 2024 
 

3 - 4 

 
3. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER STRYD 

SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD  CYNGOR 
SIR CAERFYRDDIN 

 

5 - 16 

 
4. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER YMCA, 

LLANELLI, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYNGOR SIR 
CAERFYRDDIN 

 

17 - 28 

 
5. CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER GOLWG 

GWENDRAETH, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS TAI 
POBL YN FFOS LAS, TRIMSARAN 

 

29 - 40 

 
 
 
 
Sylwer: - Nid oes hawl gan y wasg a'r cyhoedd fynychu'r cyfarfod. Bydd y cofnod penderfyniad yn 
cael ei gyhoeddi fel arfer o fewn 3 diwrnod gwaith. 
 



 

 
 

YR AELOD CABINET DROS GARTREFI A DIRPRWY ARWEINYDD 
 

DYDD Mawrth, 6 Chwefror 2024 
 

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd: L.D. Evans (Aelod o’r Cabinet) 
 
Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol: 
R. Phillips, Rheolwr Rhaglenni Ewropeaidd 
K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 
 
Ystafell Aelod y Cabinet ac o Bell Neuadd y Sir, Caeryrddin SA31 1JP - 2.00  - 2.25 yp 
 
1. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

 
Ni chafwyd datganiadau o fuddiant personol. 
 

2. LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD 
AR 8 IONAWR, 2024 
 
PENDERFYNWYD llofnodi Cofnod Penderfyniadau'r cyfarfod oedd wedi'i 
gynnal ar 8 Ionawr 2024, gan ei fod yn gywir. 
 

3. CRONFA CYMORTH BWYD UNIONGYRCHOL 
 
Rhoddodd yr Aelod Cabinet ystyriaeth i adroddiad ar gynigion i sefydlu cyfres o 
fentrau i gefnogi anghenion pobl sy'n wynebu tlodi bwyd yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, fel 
rhan o Gronfa Cymorth Bwyd Uniongyrchol Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer 2023/24 y 
dyrannwyd cyllideb i'r Cyngor o £45,647 (cyllid cyfalaf) a £55,916 (cyllid refeniw).  
  
Er mwyn cefnogi anghenion cymunedau lleol, cynigiwyd bod y cyllid yn cael ei 
ddefnyddio i ddarparu'r grantiau trydydd parti canlynol (fel y manylir yn yr 
adroddiad) a weinyddir gan Dîm Biwro'r Cyngor o fewn Datblygu Economaidd: 
  

         Cymorth i Fanciau Bwyd 
         Cymorth Digidol  
         Cronfa Gyfalaf 

  
Nododd yr Aelod Cabinet, o ran y cymorth a ddarperir i fanciau bwyd sydd wedi'u 
lleoli yn Sir Gaerfyrddin, y byddai banciau bwyd sydd wedi'u lleoli o fewn 
ardaloedd awdurdodau cyfagos hefyd yn gymwys i wneud cais am gyllid ar yr 
amod eu bod yn rhoi cymorth i drigolion yn Sir Gaerfyrddin.  
  
PENDERFYNWYD 
  
3.1 Cymeradwyo sefydlu'r grantiau trydydd parti canlynol drwy 

Gronfa Gymorth Llywodraeth Cymru a weinyddir gan Dîm 
Biwro'r Cyngor o fewn Datblygu Economaidd: 

       Cymorth i Fanciau Bwyd 

       Cymorth Digidol 

Tudalen 3

Eitem Rhif  2



 

 
 

       Cronfa Gyfalaf 
3.2 Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r Pennaeth Adfywio, Polisi a 

Digidol i ddyfarnu cyllid i ymgeiswyr llwyddiannus. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________   __________________ 
AELOD O’R CABINET     DYDDIAD 
 

Tudalen 4



 

 
 

Yr Aelod Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans Cartrefi a Dirprwy Arweinydd 

 
Y PWNC: 

CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL  
AR GYFER STRYD SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD  

CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN 
Y Pwrpas:  
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw creu Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol ar gyfer datblygiad tai newydd 
Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin yng Stryd Spilman, Caerfyrddin.  
 
Bydd y Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol hwn yn parhau ar waith am 6 mis ar ôl i'r tai cychwynnol gael 
eu gosod, er mwyn sicrhau bod y gymuned wedi'i sefydlu'n briodol. 
 
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol arfaethedig ar gyfer y tai newydd yng 5-8 Stryd 
Spilman, Caerfyrddin, datblygiad tai newydd Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin, a fydd yn helpu i greu lle 
cynaliadwy ac amrywiol i fyw ynddo. 
 
Y rhesymau:  
• Mae Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer datblygiad Stryd Spilman fel 

addasiad i'n prif bolisi gosodiadau, lle bydd meini prawf ychwanegol penodol ar waith i 
ystyried yr angen presennol am dai a materion lleol.  
 

• Bydd hyn yn sicrhau ein bod yn darparu atebion o ran llety i bobl leol sydd â'r angen 
mwyaf, yn cyflawni ein hamcan i symud pobl ymlaen yn gyflym o lety dros dro ac yn ôl i'w 
cymuned, a darparu cyfleoedd i weithwyr allweddol, gan helpu i greu cymuned gynaliadwy.  
 

• Caniateir y defnydd o Gynlluniau Gosodiadau Lleol o dan adran 167(2E) o Ddeddf Tai 
1996.  

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: Jonathan 
Morgan 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Lucy Roberts 
 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd 
 
Arweinydd Tai 
Fforddiadwy  

Ffôn: 01554 899285 

Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
LRoberts@sirgar.gov.uk 

 

5 MAWRTH 2024

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  3



 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 
None 
 
 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
N/A 
(If the answer is yes exact details are to be provided below:) 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  ____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 
The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in 
attendance at the meeting 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 6



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR 5-8 SPILMAN STREET, CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY 

COUNCIL’S NEW DEVELOPMENT IN CARMARTHEN 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Carmarthenshire 
County Council development in Spilman Street, Carmarthen. This policy will ensure that we 
create a sustainable community where people are proud to live.  
 
Context 
The Spilman Street development is in the ward of Carmarthen Town North & South. The 
development will deliver 12 social rented homes: 
 

• 2 x two bedroom 4 person flats 
• 10 x one bedroom 2 person flats 
 

The development will be handed over in one phase in early Spring 2024.  
 
Housing Need 
The ward of Carmarthen Town North & South, in which the Spilman Street development is 
situated, is an area of high housing need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

• One-bedroom flats for small households; and  
• Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger houses in the area; 
• Two-bedroom bungalows for household over 50 yrs old or requiring level access; 
• Three-bedroom houses for households; 
• Four-bedroom house for large families, this includes families currently living in unsuitable 

or overcrowded accommodation in the area. 
 
By applying a mix of tenants across the bands the aim is to ensure that the community is made 
up of a mix of households and not all high need cases.  The aim is to establish community 
cohesion and sustainable homes for the new development seeing a brand-new community 
coming together.  
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

  

Tudalen 7



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

 

 

2. Legal   
The policy must be signed off by the Cabinet Board Member for Homes before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership Board to ensure no adverse 
impact on other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy 

5. Risk Management Issues 
Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially 
result in a lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 
 

7. Physical Assets   
The new development at 5-8 Spilman Street, Carmarthen will result in 12 additional homes 
and is a mix of one and two-bedroom flats being managed by Housing Services as part of 
the Council stock.  
8. Biodiversity and Climate Change 
The homes are sustainable in terms of their carbon footprint and support the Council’s Net 
Zero Carbon Principles, creating energy efficient innovative homes, minimising carbon 
emissions and promoting affordable warmth for residents. The scheme utilises non-fossil 
fuel measures for heating and provides a minimum SAP rating of 92 (EPC A). 

 
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:      Jonathan Morgan                           Head of Housing & Public Protection           

 

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

Bio- 
diversity & 
Climate 
Change 
 

YES  YES  NONE 
 

NONE 
 

YES NONE YES YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

Tudalen 8



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:          Jonathan Morgan                        Head of  Housing & Public Protection 

 
1. Scrutiny Committee – N/A 

 
2 .  Local Member(s)   
Cllr. Peter Hughes Griffiths 
Cllr. Gareth John 
Cllr. Alun Lenny 
 
Consulted via Email on   19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet Member 
Decision meeting. 
 
3.Community / Town Council  
N/A 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
RSL partnership board consulted 19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet 
Member Decision meeting.  
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE LISTED BELOW 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Local Lettings Policy 
Spilman Street, Final 
Draft for Cabinet 
Member  

 Attached 

 
 

 

Tudalen 9



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Local Lettings Policy
5-8 Spilman Street
Carmarthen

Housing Services Division 
February 2024

Tudalen 11



 

 

 
 
 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the new 
development by Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) in 5-8 Spilman Street, 
Carmarthen.   
 
A LLP is being used for the 5-8 Spilman Street development as an adjustment to our 
main lettings policy where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of 
current housing need and local issues. This will ensure that we provide 
accommodation solutions for local people in most need, meet our objective to move 
people on quickly from temporary accommodation and back to their community, and 
provide opportunities for key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based 
Lettings Procedure that states:  
 
“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) 
or the housing association board before it can be put into place. It must have 
partnership approval to ensure any adverse unintended impact on other partner 
landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
 
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is 
required to ensure a sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be 
awarded to transfer applicants to allow for a mix of tenants in a new area.” 
 
This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

• Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who 
are currently homeless; 

• Providing homes for local people;  
• Providing homes for key workers; and 
• Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

 
 
 
 
  

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report?

2.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy?

Tudalen 12



 

 

 
 
 
 
The ward of Carmarthen Town North & South, in which 5-8 Spilman Street 
development is situated, is an area of high housing need. This need can be best 
addressed by providing: 
 

• One and two-bedroom flats for small households; and  
• Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently 

under occupying larger houses in the area; 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Spilman Street development is in the ward of Carmarthen Town North & South. 
The development will deliver 12 social rented homes: 
 

• 2 x 4 Person 2 Bed Flats 
• 10 x 2 Person 1 Bed Flats 

 
The development will be handed over in one phase in Spring 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.0 What will the development deliver?

3.0 What is the housing need in the area?

Tudalen 13



 

 

 
 
 
 
Direct matching will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for 
each priority will be limited to the percentages identified.  
 
 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 
Priority A • Applicants in greatest housing need with a community 

connection to Carmarthen (including Carmarthen Town South, 
North and West). The direct match will, also, take account of 
their support needs and community cohesion. 
 

If there are no applicants with a community connection, we may 
consider other applicants who have expressed a preference to live 
in that community. 

 

45% 
(5 homes) 

 

Priority B • Priority will be given to applicants from the Accessible Housing 
Register. 

• If there are no applicants from the Accessible Housing Register, 
we may consider applicants with a family member over the age 
of 55, people with disabilities and people with special housing 
requirements taking account of their circumstances and 
community connection.  

5% 
(1 home) 

Priority C • Priority will be given to applicants with an assessed mental 
health or learning disability who can live independently in their 
own home as defined by the Community Mental Health Team. 
  

15% 
(2 Homes) 

Priority D Applicants with a community connection to the ward of Carmarthen 
(including Carmarthen Town South, North and West).  

 
• Applicants in greatest housing need where at least one member 

is in full time employment including key workers *Key workers 
who can demonstrate they need accommodation to take up or 
sustain the offer of permanent employment in Carmarthenshire. 
 

• Current tenants who are under-occupying their current tenancy 
and are affected by bedroom tax. 

 
If there are no applicants with a community connection, we may 
consider other applicants who have expressed a preference to live 
in that community. 

  

35% 
(4 homes) 

 

 
*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

5.0 What will be the LLP for the homes in 5-8 Spilman Street?

Tudalen 14



 

 

• Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, 
Local Authority social workers, registered care staff in our health and social care 
sector (verification of Key worker employment to be sent to 
HousingServicesHousingOptionsTeam@carmarthenshire.gov.uk); and 

• Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and 
Rescue Service, prison service and other national security roles. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Following two direct matching panel meetings, if any homes remain in each of the 
above priorities, these will then be advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with 
our main lettings policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
The direct matching of applicants will be assessed based on the letting conditions set 
out in this Local Lettings Policy. For properties advertised via Canfod Cartref the 
applicants’ bids will be determined in accordance with our main lettings policy. 
 
New tenants must have attended and engaged with pre-tenancy training and then be 
deemed as tenant ready before an offer of accommodation is made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
When allocating homes at 5-8 Spilman Street, eligibility, exclusions will apply as set 
out in the Emergency Social Housing Allocations Policy. 
 
 
 
 
When letting these homes CCC will ensure it complies with the Equality Act 2010.  
CCC will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, ethnic or national origin, 
religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 
The use of the Local Lettings Policy when allocating homes will ensure that everyone 
is treated fairly and is not discriminated against, harassed, or victimised on any of 
the following protected characteristics while accessing our service - 

7.0 Shortlisting

8.0 What will be the letting eligibility, refusal, and exclusions at
5-8 Spilman Street, Carmarthen?

9.0 Equality and Diversity

6.0 Advertisement

Tudalen 15



 

 

Age, disability, race and nationality, religion or belief, Pregnancy and Maternity, 
marriage or civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes being 
let. After this time, it will be reviewed by CCC, to determine its impact on the community 
and to ensure that it has met the initial aims of the policy.  And whether the term should 
be extended to create a sustainable community in an area where there is local housing 
need.   

 
 
Signed on behalf of CCC: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

 

10.0 Term and Review

Tudalen 16



 

 
 

Yr Aelod Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans Cartrefi a Dirprwy Arweinydd 

 
Y PWNC: 

CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL  
AR GYFER YMCA, LLANELLI, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD  

CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN 
Y Pwrpas:  
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw creu Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol ar gyfer datblygiad newydd Cyngor 
Sir Caerfyrddin yng YMCA, Llanelli.  
 
Bydd y Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol hwn yn parhau ar waith am 6 mis ar ôl i'r tai cychwynnol gael 
eu gosod, er mwyn sicrhau bod y gymuned wedi'i sefydlu'n briodol. 
 
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol arfaethedig ar gyfer y tai newydd yng YMCA, Llanelli, 
datblygiad newydd Cyngor Sir Caerfyrddin, a fydd yn helpu i greu lle cynaliadwy ac amrywiol i 
fyw ynddo. 
 
Y rhesymau:  
• Mae Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer datblygiad YMCA fel addasiad 

i'n prif bolisi gosodiadau, lle bydd meini prawf ychwanegol penodol ar waith i ystyried yr 
angen presennol am dai a materion lleol.  
 

• Bydd hyn yn sicrhau ein bod yn darparu atebion o ran llety i bobl leol sydd â'r angen 
mwyaf, yn cyflawni ein hamcan i symud pobl ymlaen yn gyflym o lety dros dro ac yn ôl i'w 
cymuned, a darparu cyfleoedd i weithwyr allweddol, gan helpu i greu cymuned gynaliadwy.  
 

• Caniateir y defnydd o Gynlluniau Gosodiadau Lleol o dan adran 167(2E) o Ddeddf Tai 
1996.  

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: Jonathan 
Morgan 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Lucy Roberts 
 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd 
 
Arweinydd Tai 
Fforddiadwy  

Ffôn: 01554 899285 

Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
LRoberts@sirgar.gov.uk 

  

5 MAWRTH 2024

Tudalen 17

Eitem Rhif  4



 

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 
None 
 
 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
N/A 
(If the answer is yes exact details are to be provided below:) 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  ____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 
The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in 
attendance at the meeting 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 18



 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  
FOR YMCA, CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL’S NEW 

DEVELOPMENT IN LLANELLI. 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Carmarthenshire 
County Council development in YMCA, Llanelli. This policy will ensure that we create a 
sustainable community where people are proud to live.  
 
Context 
The YMCA development is in the ward of Tyisha. The development will deliver 8 social rented 
homes: 
 

• 8 x two bedroom 3 person flats 
 

The development will be handed over in one phase in early Spring 2024.  
 
Housing Need 
The ward of Tyisha, in which the YMCA development is situated, is an area of high housing 
need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

• One-bedroom flats for small households; and  
• Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger houses in the area; 
• Two-bedroom bungalows for household over 50 yrs old or requiring level access; 
• Three-bedroom houses for households; 
• Four-bedroom house for large families, this includes families currently living in unsuitable 

or overcrowded accommodation in the area. 
 
By applying a mix of tenants across the bands the aim is to ensure that the community is made 
up of a mix of households and not all high need cases.  The aim is to establish community 
cohesion and sustainable homes for the new development seeing a brand-new community 
coming together.  
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

  

Tudalen 19



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

 

 

2. Legal   
The policy must be signed off by the Cabinet Board Member for Homes before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership Board to ensure no adverse 
impact on other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy 

5. Risk Management Issues 
Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially 
result in a lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 
 

7. Physical Assets   
The new development at YMCA, LLANELLI will result in 8 additional two-bedroom flats 
being managed by Housing Services as part of the Council stock.  

 

8. Biodiversity and Climate Change 
The homes are sustainable in terms of their carbon footprint and support the Councils Net 
Zero Carbon Principles, creating energy efficient innovative homes, minimising carbon 
emissions and promoting affordable warmth for residents. The scheme utilises non-fossil 
fuel measures for heating and provides a minimum SAP rating of 92 (EPC A). 

 
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:      Jonathan Morgan                           Head of Housing & Public Protection           

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

Bio- diversity 
& Climate 
Change 
 

YES  YES  NONE 
 

NONE 
 

YES NONE YES YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

Tudalen 20



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:          Jonathan Morgan                        Head of  Housing & Public Protection 

 
1. Scrutiny Committee – N/A 

 
2 .  Local Member(s)   
Cllr. Suzy Curry 
Cllr. Terry Davies 
 
Consulted via Email on   19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet Member 
Decision meeting. 
 
3.Community / Town Council  
N/A 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
RSL partnership board consulted 19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet 
Member Decision meeting.  
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE LISTED BELOW 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Local Lettings Policy 
YMCA, Llanelli Final 
Draft for Cabinet 
Member  

 Attached 

 
 
 

 

Tudalen 21



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



 

Local Lettings Policy
YMCA
Llanelli

Housing Services Division 
February 2024

Tudalen 23



 

 

 
 
 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the new 
development by Carmarthenshire County Council (CCC) in the former YMCA, Llanelli.   
 
A LLP is being used for the YMCA development as an adjustment to our main lettings 
policy where specific additional criteria will apply to take account of current housing 
need and local issues. This will ensure that we provide accommodation solutions for 
local people in most need, meet our objective to move people on quickly from 
temporary accommodation and back to their community, and provide opportunities for 
key workers, helping to create a sustainable community.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Local Lettings Policy will be implemented in line with the Council’s Choice Based 
Lettings Procedure that states:  
 
“A local lettings policy must be approved by the Cabinet Member for Housing (Council) 
or the housing association board before it can be put into place. It must have 
partnership approval to ensure any adverse unintended impact on other partner 
landlords are mitigated and the review period agreed.  
An example is, when looking at new housing developments, a local lettings plan is 
required to ensure a sustainable community cohesion is sought. Preference can be 
awarded to transfer applicants to allow for a mix of tenants in a new area.” 
 
This LLP has four key aims, these are: 
 

• Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who 
are currently homeless; 

• Providing homes for local people;  
• Providing homes for key workers; and 
• Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

 
 
 
 
  

1.0 What is the purpose and context of this report?

2.0 What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy?

Tudalen 24



 

 

 
 
 
 
The ward of Tyisha, in which YMCA development is situated, is an area of high 
housing need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

• One and two-bedroom flats for small households; and  
• Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently 

under occupying larger houses in the area; 
• Two-bedroom bungalows for household over 55 yrs old or requiring level 

access; 
• Three-bedroom houses for households; 
• Four-bedroom house for large families, this includes families currently living 

in unsuitable or overcrowded accommodation in the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The YMCA development is in the ward of Tyisha. The development will deliver 8 social 
rented homes: 
 

• 8 x 3 Person 2 Bed Flats 
 
The development will be handed over in one phase in Spring 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.0 What is the housing need in the area?

4.0 What will the development deliver?

Tudalen 25



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Direct matching will follow the priority categories in the table below. The number for 
each priority will be limited to the percentages identified.  
 

Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number 
of homes 

% 
Priority A • Applicants in greatest housing need with a community 

connection to Llanelli Town (Elli, Bigyn, Glanymor and Tyisha).  
The direct match will, also, take account of their support needs 
and community cohesion. 
 

If there are no applicants with a community connection, we may 
consider other applicants who have expressed a preference to live 
in that community.  

50% 
(4 homes) 

 
 

Priority B • Priority will be given to applicants with an assessed mental 
health or learning disability who can live independently in their 
own home as defined by the Community Mental Health Team. 

 

25% 
(2 homes) 

Priority C Applicants with a community connection to Llanelli Town (Elli, 
Bigyn, Glanymor and Tyisha).    

 
• Applicants in greatest housing need where at least one member 

is in full time employment including key workers *Key workers 
who can demonstrate they need accommodation to take up or 
sustain the offer of permanent employment in Carmarthenshire. 

• Current tenants who are under-occupying their current tenancy 
and are affected by bedroom tax. 

 
If there are no applicants with a community connection, we may 
consider other applicants who have expressed a preference to live 
in that community. 
 

25% 
(2 homes) 

 

 
*Key Workers are normally defined as:  

• Health and Social Care.  This includes NHS doctors, nurses, midwives, paramedics, 
Local Authority social workers, registered care staff in our health and social care 
sector (verification of Key worker employment to be sent to 
HousingServicesHousingOptionsTeam@carmarthenshire.gov.uk); and 

• Public safety and national security.  This includes officers in the police, Fire and 
Rescue Service, prison service and other national security roles. 

 
 
 

5.0 What will be the LLP for the homes in YMCA?

Tudalen 26



 

 

 
 
 
 
Following two direct matching panel meetings, if any homes remain in each of the 
above priorities, these will then be advertised via Canfod Cartref in accordance with 
our main lettings policy. 
 
 
 
 
The direct matching of applicants will be assessed based on the letting conditions set 
out in this Local Lettings Policy. For properties advertised via Canfod Cartref the 
applicants’ bids will be determined in accordance with our main lettings policy. 
 
New tenants must have attended and engaged with pre-tenancy training and then be 
deemed as tenant ready before an offer of accommodation is made. 
 
 
 
 
 
When allocating homes at YMCA, eligibility, exclusions will apply as set out in the 
Emergency Social Housing Allocations Policy. 
 
 
 
 
When letting these homes CCC will ensure it complies with the Equality Act 2010.  
CCC will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, ethnic or national origin, 
religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 
The use of the Local Lettings Policy when allocating homes will ensure that everyone 
is treated fairly and is not discriminated against, harassed, or victimised on any of the 
following protected characteristics while accessing our service - 
Age, disability, race and nationality, religion or belief, Pregnancy and Maternity, 
marriage or civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes being 
let. After this time, it will be reviewed by CCC, to determine its impact on the community 
and to ensure that it has met the initial aims of the policy.  And whether the term should 

6.0 Advertisement

10.0 Term and Review

7.0 Shortlisting

8.0 What will be the letting eligibility, refusal, and exclusions at
YMCA, Llanelli?

9.0 Equality and Diversity

Tudalen 27



 

 

be extended to create a sustainable community in an area where there is local housing 
need.   

 
 
Signed on behalf of CCC: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

 

Tudalen 28



 

 
 

Yr Aelod Cabinet: Y Portffolio: 
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans Cartrefi a Dirprwy Arweinydd 

 
Y PWNC: 

CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL  
AR GYFER GOLWG GWENDRAETH, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS 

TAI POBL YN FFOS LAS, TRIMSARAN 
Y Pwrpas:  
Pwrpas yr adroddiad hwn yw creu Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol ar gyfer datblygiad tai newydd 
Cymdeithas Tai Pobl yng Golwg Gwendraeth, Ffos Las, Trimsaran.  
 
Bydd y Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol hwn yn parhau ar waith am 6 mis ar ôl i'r tai cychwynnol gael 
eu gosod, er mwyn sicrhau bod y gymuned wedi'i sefydlu'n briodol. 
 
Yr argymhellion / penderfyniadau allweddol sydd eu hangen: 
Cymeradwyo'r Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol arfaethedig ar gyfer y tai newydd yng Golwg 
Gwendraeth, datblygiad tai newydd Cymdeithas Tai Pobl, a fydd yn helpu i greu lle 
cynaliadwy ac amrywiol i fyw ynddo. 
 
Y rhesymau:  
• Mae Polisi Gosodiadau Lleol yn cael ei ddefnyddio ar gyfer datblygiad Golwg Gwendraeth 

fel addasiad i'n prif bolisi gosodiadau, lle bydd meini prawf ychwanegol penodol ar waith i 
ystyried yr angen presennol am dai a materion lleol.  
 

• Bydd hyn yn sicrhau ein bod yn darparu atebion o ran llety i bobl leol sydd â'r angen 
mwyaf, yn cyflawni ein hamcan i symud pobl ymlaen yn gyflym o lety dros dro ac yn ôl i'w 
cymuned, a darparu cyfleoedd i weithwyr allweddol, gan helpu i greu cymuned gynaliadwy.  
 

• Caniateir y defnydd o Gynlluniau Gosodiadau Lleol o dan adran 167(2E) o Ddeddf Tai 
1996.  

 
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: 
Cymunedau 

Enw Pennaeth y 
Gwasanaeth: Jonathan 
Morgan 

Awdur yr Adroddiad:  
Lucy Roberts 

Swyddi: 

Pennaeth Tai a Diogelu'r 
Cyhoedd 
 
Arweinydd Tai 
Fforddiadwy  

Ffôn: 01554 899285 

Cyfeiriadau e-bost: 
 
LRoberts@sirgar.gov.uk 

 
  

5 MAWRTH 2024

Tudalen 29

Eitem Rhif  5



 

 
Declaration of Personal Interest (if any): 
None 
 
 
 

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any): 
N/A 
(If the answer is yes exact details are to be provided below:) 
 
 
 
 
 

DECISION MADE: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed:  ____________________________________________________________DATE:_______ 
                                                                   CABINET MEMBER  
 

 
The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in 
attendance at the meeting 
Recommendation of Officer 
adopted 

YES / NO 
 

Recommendation of the Officer 
was adopted subject to the 
amendment(s) and reason(s) 
specified: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason(s) why the Officer’s 
recommendation was not 
adopted: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Tudalen 30



 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
CREATING A LOCAL LETTINGS POLICY  

FOR GOLWG GWENDRAETH, POBL HOUSING ASSOCIATION’S 
NEW DEVELOPMENT IN FFOS LAS, TRIMSARAN. 

Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for the Pobl Housing 
Association’s new build development in Golwg Gwendraeth, Ffos Las, Trimsaran. This policy will 
ensure that we create a sustainable community where people are proud to live.  
 
Context 
The Golwg Gwendraeth, development is in the ward of Trimsaran. The development will deliver 
24 social rented homes: 
 

• 12 x two bedroom 4 person houses 
• 3 x three bedroom 5 person houses; and 
• 2 x four bedroom 7 person houses 
 

The development will be handed over in one phase in February 2024.  
 
Housing Need 
The ward of Trimsaran, in which the Golwg Gwendraeth, development is situated, is an area of 
high housing need. This need can be best addressed by providing: 
 

• One-bedroom flats for small households; and  
• Two-bedroom houses for small families, this includes families currently under occupying 

larger houses in the area; 
• Two-bedroom bungalows for household over 50 yrs old or requiring level access; 
• Three-bedroom houses for households; 
• Four-bedroom house for large families, this includes families currently living in unsuitable 

or overcrowded accommodation in the area. 
 
By applying a mix of tenants across the bands the aim is to ensure that the community is made 
up of a mix of households and not all high need cases.  The aim is to establish community 
cohesion and sustainable homes for the new development seeing a brand-new community 
coming together.  
 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES  

 
 

  

Tudalen 31



 

IMPLICATIONS 

 

 

 

2. Legal   
The policy must be signed off by the Cabinet Board Member for Homes before it can be 
implemented and approved by the Social Housing Partnership Board to ensure no adverse 
impact on other landlords. This is in line with the process identified in the Allocation Policy 

5. Risk Management Issues 
Failure to implement a Local Lettings Policy for the new development could potentially 
result in a lack of cohesion in the new formed communities. 

 
 

8. Biodiversity and Climate Change 
The homes are sustainable in terms of their carbon footprint and support the Councils Net 
Zero Carbon Principles, creating energy efficient innovative homes, minimising carbon 
emissions and promoting affordable warmth for residents. The scheme utilises non-fossil 
fuel measures for heating and provides a minimum SAP rating of 92 (EPC A). 

 
  

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / 
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with 
this report: 
 
Signed:      Jonathan Morgan                           Head of Housing & Public Protection           

 

Policy, Crime 
& Disorder 
and 
Equalities 

Legal 
 

Finance 
 

ICT 
 

Risk 
Management 
Issues 
 

Staffing 
Implications 

 

Physical 
Assets  

 

Bio- diversity & 
Climate 
Change 
 

YES  YES  NONE 
 

NONE 
 

YES NONE NONE YES 

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities 
The development of the Local Lettings scheme is aligned with the Council’s overarching 
Access to Social Housing Policy. 

Tudalen 32



 

CONSULTATIONS 
 

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below 
 
Signed:          Jonathan Morgan                        Head of  Housing & Public Protection 

 
1. Scrutiny Committee – N/A 

 
2 .  Local Member(s)   
Cllr. Kim Broom -Trimsaran 
Consulted via Email on 19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet Member Decision 
meeting. 
 
3.Community / Town Council  
N/A 
 
4.Relevant Partners   
RSL partnership board consulted 19/02/2024. Feedback to be provided in the Cabinet 
Member Decision meeting.  
 
5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations   
Relevant staff from Housing Services have been fully involved in the development of the 
policy. 

 
 

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information 
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report: 
 
THESE ARE LISTED BELOW 
 
Title of Document 
 

File Ref No. Locations that the papers are available for public inspection  

Local Lettings Policy 
Golwg Gwendraeth,  
Final Draft for Cabinet 
Member  

 Attached 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 33



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



  

 

 
 

Local Lettings Policy  
Golwg Gwendraeth 

Trimsaran 
(Ffos Las) 

 
 
 
 
January 2024

** 

Tudalen 35



2 
 

 
1. What is the purpose and context of this report? 
 
The purpose of this report is to create a Local Lettings Policy (LLP) for Pobl’s interest in the 
new development at Golwg Gwendraeth, Trimsaran. This is in the Trimsaran Ward and the 
Llanelli West Community Connection Area.  
 
This LLP will assist Pobl and our partners in creating a successful and sustainable community 
within this important new development at first letting. We will be able to provide high quality 
rented housing to local people, meeting a range of housing needs including those in the 
highest priority. 
 
Pobl will provide 18 houses for rent forming part of a larger housing development for private 
sale being delivered by housebuilder Dandara next to the Ffos Las racecourse, Trimsaran.  

 
 

2. What are the aims of the Local Lettings Policy? 

 
The aims of the LLP are as follows: 
 

• Providing homes for people in housing need, particularly those who are 
currently homeless; 

• Providing homes for local people;  
• Creating a balanced sustainable community. 

The LLP will be in place for the first letting of the homes at Golwg Gwendraeth to assist us in 
creating a balanced and sustainable community there.  

 
 
 

3. What will the development deliver? 
 
Pobl’s new homes at Golwg Gwendraeth will be delivered in two phases with the first houses 
being handed over in February 2024. The houses are a mixture of terraced, semi-detached, 
and detached houses with sizes as follows: 
 
2-bedroom house x 12  
3-bedroom house x 4  
4-bedroom house x 2  
 
The houses are the developer’s standard house types, and as such do not offer the ‘lifetime 
home’ standards that are routinely delivered in grant-funded schemes. For that reason, the 
priority for letting outlined in section 5 does not include any reference to the Accessible 
Housing Register.  
 
The development is adjacent to previous new developments on the edge of Carway and next 
to the Ffos Las racecourse, as shown outlined in red below: 
 
 

Tudalen 36



3 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
The rented homes are located in small clusters throughout the development, creating a 
mixed tenure layout which is consistent with Pobl’s general approach to mixed-tenure 
schemes. 
 
 

 

Tudalen 37



4 
 

 
 

4. Allocations policy  

 
This LLP has been developed within the current policy framework for Carmarthenshire, 
namely the ‘Emergency Social Housing Allocations Policy’ implemented in April 2023. (This 
is an interim policy currently being developed into a full policy). 
 
Therefore, lettings undertaken at Golwg Gwendraeth will follow the process for direct 
matching, advertising through the CBL and offers to transfers as per the current policy and 
procedure.  
 
The policy deals with all matters of eligibility, priority, where people are excluded and any 
exemptions. The LLP deals with any variation to the policy in how priority is established. This 
is set out in section 5 below.  

 
 

5. Priorities under the LLP at Golwg Gwendraeth 

Direct matching through the normal process will follow the priority categories in the table 
below. The number for each priority will be limited to the percentages identified. 
 

 
Letting 
priority 

Letting Type Number of 
homes 

% 
Priority A • Applicants in Band A, with the greatest 

housing need, and a community connection. 
• The direct match will, also, take account of 

their support needs and community cohesion. 
• If there are no applicants with a community 

connection, we may consider other applicants 
who have expressed a preference to live in 
that community. 

65% 
(12 homes) 

 
 

Priority B • Applicants in Band B.  
• The direct match will, also, take account of 

their support needs and community cohesion. 
• If there are no applicants with a community 

connection, we may consider other applicants 
who have expressed a preference to live in 
that community. 

35% 
(6 homes) 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 38



5 
 

 
 
 

 
6. Equality and diversity  

 
When letting these homes, Pobl Group will not discriminate on the grounds of gender, race, 
ethnic or national origin, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, age, or disability. 
 

The use of the Local Lettings Policy when allocating homes will ensure that everyone is 
treated fairly and is not discriminated against, harassed, or victimised on any of the 
following protected characteristics while accessing our service - 
age, disability, race and nationality, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage or 
civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, gender reassignment. 
 
 
7. Term and review 

This Local Lettings Policy will remain in place for six months following all homes being let. 
After this time, it will be reviewed by Pobl Group, to determine its impact on the community 
and whether the term should be extended. 
 
 
 
Signed on behalf of Pobl Group: 
 
 
Name: _______________________  Date: ___________  
 
 
Signature: _______________________ 

Tudalen 39



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	2 LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR GOFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 6ED CHWEFROR, 2024
	3 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER STRYD SPILMAN, CAERFYRDDIN, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD  CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN
	Adroddiad

	4 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER YMCA, LLANELLI, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYNGOR SIR CAERFYRDDIN
	Adroddiad

	5 CREU POLISI GOSODIADAU LLEOL AR GYFER GOLWG GWENDRAETH, DATBLYGIAD NEWYDD CYMDEITHAS TAI POBL YN FFOS LAS, TRIMSARAN
	Adroddiad


